

# M-Bus OPC-Server

# MANUAL

Coupling of M-Bus devices to OPC-based control systems

# Contents

1.Foreword	1
Supported operating system versions	1
Required hardware	1
2.Literature references	2
2.1 Registered trademarks	2
2.2 Copyright	2
2.3 Document revision	2
3 M-Bus Basics	3
3.1 Level converter	3
3.2 Serial Device Server 10BaseT to RS232C	3
3.3 M-Bus addressing There are two basic types of addressing:	3
3.4 Addressing OPC	3
4 Installing the software	4
4.1 First steps and sample configuration After the M-Bus OPC server has been connected to the M-Bus via the RS232C interface using a level converter, start the M-Bus OPC server.	5
5.The dialogs of the program	8
5.1 The main window	8
5.3 The toolbar The toolbar provides quick access to the most important program functions. The individua functions of the toolbar are described below	 1
5.4 The menus of the M-Bus OPC server1	2
5.5 "Edit/Properties" dialog14	4
5.7 Data point properties dialog1	9
5.8 "Mode/Settings" dialog2	1
6 OPC addressing	3

# 1. Foreword

Thank you for using the M-Bus OPC server. This easy-to-use software makes it easy to connect M-Bus meters to OPC-based visualization systems.

# SUPPORTED OPERATING SYSTEM VERSIONS

- Windows<sup>®</sup> Server 2012 R2
- Windows® 7 32 bit / 64 bit
- Windows<sup>®</sup> Server 2008 R2 64 Bit
- Windows<sup>®</sup> 2008 Server 32 Bit / 64 Bit
- Windows<sup>®</sup> 2003 Server 32 Bit / 64 Bit
- Windows® Vista 32 bit / 64 bit

## **REQUIRED HARDWARE**

The hardware you need is an IBM-compatible PC. As a minimum, we recommend a Pentium processor, at least 133Mhz and 32 MB RAM memory as well as a CD-ROM drive. The installation requires approx. 15 MB free memory on the hard disk. A free USB port is required to operate the software protection plug (dongle).

# 2. Literature References

European standard EN 1434-3

Interesting links on the subject of M-Bus on the World Wide Web

- <u>www.m-bus.com</u> Information on the European Standard, company directory
- <u>www.relay.de</u> Information about M-Bus level converters

## 2.1 REGISTERED TRADEMARKS

Trademarks and product names of various companies are used in this book. The following names are registered trademarks of the respective manufacturers and are not listed separately in this book:

- Microsoft, Windows and MS-DOS are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation
- Intel and Pentium are registered trademarks of Intel Corporation
- IBM-PC and IBM-AT are registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation

The M-Bus logo is a trademark of the M-Bus Usergroup, Paderborn and was kindly made available to us.

### 2.2 COPYRIGHT

©2012MBS GmbH | Römerstraße 15 | D-47809 Krefeld

Phone: +49 / 21 51 / 72 94 - 0 Fax: +49 / 21 51 / 72 94 - 50

E-Mail: <u>info@mbs-software.de</u> Internet: http://www.mbs-software.de

All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced in any form (print, photocopy or any other process) or processed, copied or distributed using electronic systems without the written permission of MBS GmbH.

## 2.3 DOCUMENT REVISION

REV. NO.	DATE	AUTHOR	REMARK
0.1	09.02.2012	ane	

# 3 M-Bus basics

M-Bus is specified in the European standard as EN 1434-3. For connection to PCs, various manufacturers offer level converters that convert the M-Bus to a serial RS232C interface.

# **3.1 LEVEL CONVERTER**

A bus is a serial interface to which an M-Bus level converter is connected. Power is supplied to the M-Bus meters via the same 2-wire connection cable that is also used for communication, i.e. reading the meters. Level converters are available for different meter quantities; the maximum number of meters per level converter depends on the number of M-Bus standard loads. One M-Bus standard load is 1.5mA. **Important note:** When designing your project, please bear in mind that meters can also take up more than one standard load.

### 3.2 SERIAL DEVICE SERVER 10BASET TO RS232C

The Serial Device Server enables the connection of level converters with RS232C interface to the 10BaseT Ethernet. In conjunction with Windows drivers for virtual COM ports, M-Bus data can be transmitted to the M-Bus OPC server via Ethernet routes. The physical Ethernet interface is converted to RS232C and the TCP/IP protocol to the serial V24 protocol. The virtual COM ports created by the driver are managed by the M-Bus OPC server in the same way as physical interfaces.

### **3.3 ADDRESSING M-BUS**

There are two basic types of addressing:

- **Primary addressing:** A maximum of 250 meters can be connected per bus; each meter is assigned a unique meter number from 1-250 during project planning.
- Secondary addressing: More than 250 meters can be addressed via the secondary address.

The M-Bus OPC server supports both types of addressing.

### **3.4 ADDRESSING OPC**

OPC (Ole for Process Control) is a specification for the exchange of data on Microsoft<sup>®</sup> WindowsTM based environments. The basis for OPC is the COM (Component Object Model) or DCOM (Distributed Component Object Model) specified by Microsoft. OPC is based on the client/server architecture, i.e. an OPC server makes its data available to others (OPC clients). DCOM also allows OPC data to be transported between different computers via the network, i.e. the OPC server and OPC client can run on different PCs.

#### This M-Bus OPC server supports the following OPC specifications:

- OPC Data Access Specifications Version 1.0
- OPC Data Access Specifications Version 2.0

# 4. Installation of the software

If the autostart function of the CDROM drive is switched on, the installation program is started automatically after inserting the program CDROM.

If the autostart function is not activated, please call up the "SETUP.EXE" program from the main directory of the CDROM for installation.

Please follow the instructions of the installation program.

After installation, the software is available in the start menu.

If required, the software can also be copied to the Autostart folder to enable an automatic start after the operator logs in. In this case, the last saved project planning is automatically called up so that the required data is immediately available.

**Uninstalling:** If you want to uninstall the program, go to "Add or Remove Programs" in the Windows Control Panel and uninstall the program.

After installing the program, plug the supplied software protection plug (dongle) into a free USB port. The M-Bus OPC server is now ready for use.

An OPC mini-client is installed with the M-Bus OPC server. This OPC mini-client can be used to easily test the OPC functionality of the M-Bus OPC server. The OPC mini-client is located in the MBS program directory.



# 4.1 FIRST STEPS AND SAMPLE CONFIGURATION

Once the M-Bus OPC server has been connected to the M-Bus via the RS232C interface using a level converter, start the M-Bus OPC server.

Now create a new M-Bus:



Set up this M-Bus, select the desired settings and confirm with "OK".

Bus Eigenschaften		<b>×</b>
Name:	Bus1	ОК
Beschreibung:		Abbrechen
Zähler-Anzahl:	0	
Schnittstelle:	COM1	•
Suchmethode:	Wildcard	•
Auf dem M-Bu	s gleichzeitig unterstützte Baudraten	
<b>▼</b> 300	☐ 1200 ☐ 4800 ☐ 192	200
□ 600	☑ 2400 ☑ 9600 □ 384	400
Schnittstellenk RTS: Disa	onfiguration ble <b>v</b> DTR:	Disable

The newly created M-Bus is now displayed in the main window. If another M-Bus is required, repeat the previous steps.

🕵 Unbenannt - M-Bus OPC-Server					
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Modus ?					
🗋 🗅 🚔 🖬 🖼 🎎 🕺 🎯 🖻 🕽	<b>% ≓  ?</b>				
×	Name	Port	Status	Zähler-Anzahl	Beschreibung
In the ANE-PC-W7-64	<b>₽</b> :n1	CO141	<u></u>	000	
	A BRIZT	COMI	Conn	000	
Bus1,COM1	ABRR	COMI	Conn	000	

The M-Bus is then read in. To do this, select the following menu:



In the following dialog, select the desired settings and confirm with "OK".

M-BUS Einscannen	<b>X</b>
Adressbereich	ОК
C Primäradresse 0 - 250	
Sekundäradresse	Abbrechen
C gesamten Bus gemäß Einstellungen Scannen	
Poll-Intervall 15 Minuten	
✓ vorhandene Zähler überspringen	

The meters are then read in. Depending on the topology, this process may take some time. The meters found are displayed in the system tree and in the main window.

🕵 Unbenannt - M-Bus OPC-Server							
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Modus ?							
🗋 D 📽 🖬   📽 📽   🎊 🔅 🙆   🖻   2	% ≓   ?						
×	Name	Wert	Тур	Faktor	Einheit	Status	Systemzeit
□	l冒 DP-001	126181	Energy	1	KWh	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
È… ♥ Bus1,COM1	🗄 DP-002	785692	Volume	1	1	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
zaehler0000004	🗄 DP-003	721065	Volume	1	1	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
zaehler00000010	E DP-004	241	Flow Tempera	1	°C	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
zaehler00219690	📴 DP-005	241	Return Tempe	1	°C	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-006	0	Temperature	0.1	К	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-007	82809	On Time	1	hour	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-008	1324	Operating Time	1	hour	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-009	0	Volume Flow	1	l/h	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-010	0	Power	10	W	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-011	06.02.12 23:02	Time Point		Date&Time	Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-012	4	Units for H.C.A.			Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-013	5	Units for H.C.A.			Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-014	c4 09 01 07 0	Binary			Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:29
	E DP-015	c5 00 ff ff 06	Binary			Ok	15.02.2012 14:03:30
	•						
Sucht Zähler im Sekundäradressbereich:					Maske:	)02 <del>ffff</del> f, F	Rest:99799999

Once the read-in process is complete, the following message appears in the status bar: "Meter read-in is complete!"

The M-Bus OPC server can be switched to "Activate polling" mode via the toolbar. The meter data points are now polled cyclically. The polling interval is set via the properties of the meter. (See also: Meter properties dialog)

🕵 Unbenannt - M-Bus OPC-Server				
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Modus ?				
] 🗅 📽 🖬   🖼 🛤   🎊 🔅 🎯   🏊	× ≓   ?			
×	Name	Status	Medium	Adresse
E ANE-PC-W7-64	📼 zaehler00000004	Enabled	Electricity	004
Bus1,COM1	📼 zaehler00000010	Enabled	Electricity	010
zaehler0000004	📼 zaehler00219690	Enabled	Heat	001
zaehler00000010	📼 zaehler00510399	Enabled	Heat	001
zaehler00219690	📼 zaehler00510400	Enabled	Heat/cooling load	001
zaehler00510399	📼 zaehler06371082	Enabled	Heat	016
zaehler00510400	📼 zaehler13010046	Enabled	Bus component	001
zaehler06371082	📼 zaehler23239017	Enabled	Heat	017
zaehler13010046	📼 zaehler23239020	Enabled	Heat	018
	zaehler30c95322	Enabled	Bus component	129
zaehler23239020	zaehler32060125	Enabled	Heat	013
	zaehler70850193	Enabled	Heat	015
	zaehler90102637	Enabled	Heat	024
🖃 zaehler90102637				
				1
Pollen Datenpunkt von Zahler00510399 an CO	MI.			

# 5. The dialogs of the program

# 5.1 THE MAIN WINDOW

After starting the software, the program window appears.

🕵 Unbenannt - M-Bus OPC-Sen	/er								• ×
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht N	Aodus ?								
0 🗳 🖬 🖼 🖼 🤼 🔅	🚳   🖻   🖄 ≠	?							
×	Name	Status	Medium	Adresse	Baudrate	Datenpunkt-Anzahl	Polling-Intervall	Hersteller	Version
	<ul> <li>zaehler00000004</li> <li>zaehler00000010</li> <li>zaehler00219690</li> <li>zaehler00355834</li> <li>zaehler00510399</li> </ul>	Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled	Electricity Electricity Heat Heat Heat	004 010 001 026 001	2400 bps 2400 bps 2400 bps 9600 bps 2400 bps	011 011 293 014 293	15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten	EMH Elektrizitatszahler GmbH & CO KG EMH Elektrizitatszahler GmbH & CO KG AB Svensk Värmemätning SVM NZR AB Svensk Värmemätning SVM	009 009 009 001 009
<ul> <li>zachler00355834</li> <li>zachler00510399</li> <li>zachler00510400</li> <li>zachler0531082</li> <li>zachler03024922</li> <li>zachler100810</li> <li>zachler100811</li> <li>zachler1300046</li> <li>zachler1300046</li> <li>zachler230907</li> </ul>	zachier00510400 zachier00510400 zachier03024922 zachier1000810 zachier1000810 zachier11000810 zachier1301046 zachier32039020 zachier3205122 zachier30c95322 zachier30c95322 zachier30c95322 zachier30102637	Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled Enabled	Heat/cooling lo Electricity Veat Electricity Water Electricity Water Buy component Heat Heat Heat Heat Heat	001 002 016 001 001 001 001 017 018 129 013 015 024	2400 bps 9600 bps 9600 bps 9600 bps 9600 bps 9600 bps 2400 bps 2400 bps 2400 bps 2400 bps 2400 bps 2400 bps	293 006 013 006 006 010 025 019 012 023 017	15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten 15 Minuten	AB Svensk Varmemätning SVM Relay GmbH, Germany Sontex SA Hydrometer GmbH Hydrometer GmbH ZENNER GmbH & Co KGaA, 66121 Saarb ZENNER GmbH & Co KGaA, 66121 Saarb Hydrometer GmbH Sensus Metering Systems, Ludwigshafen Schlumberger Industries Ltd.	126 008 012 149 149 150 099 151 096 052 005
Bereit	<b></b>						Parametri	erung NUM	1//
System tree	Status b	ar	Tool	lbar		Main windo	W		

#### System tree:

In this screen, the connected M-Bus meters are displayed in a tree structure similar to the Windows file explorer.

#### Status bar:

Displays the operating status of the M-Bus OPC server.

#### Toolbar:

The toolbar provides quick access to the most important program functions.

#### Main window:

The main window provides a convenient overview of the connected devices and current meter values even without connected OPC clients.

The columns of the main window display different specific information in the columns depending on whether "Bus" or "Meter" is selected.

The program	window	in the	"Bus"	view.
-------------	--------	--------	-------	-------

atei Bearbeiten Ansicht Mo	dus ?									
) 🛎 🖬 🖼 🖼 🤼 🖗 (	§  <b>←</b> %  📶   ©									
	Name	Status	Medium	Adresse	Baudrate	Datenpunkt-Anzahl	Polling-Intervall	Hersteller	Version	Beschreibu
4 ANE-PC-W7-64	aehler00000004	Enabled	Electricity	004	2400 bps	226	15 Minuten	EMH Elektrizitatszahler GmbH & CO KG	009	
🖃 🖓 Bus1,COM1	aehler00000010	Enabled	Electricity	010	2400 bps	011	15 Minuten	EMH Elektrizitatszahler GmbH & CO KG	009	
	aehler00219690	Enabled	Heat	001	2400 bps	293	15 Minuten	AB Svensk Värmemätning SVM	009	
zaehler00000010	aehler00510399	Enabled	Heat	001	2400 bps	293	15 Minuten	AB Svensk Värmemätning SVM	009	
🥶 zaehler00219690	📼 zaehler00510400	Enabled	Heat/cooling load	001	2400 bps	293	15 Minuten	AB Svensk Värmemätning SVM	126	
	zaehler06371082	Enabled	Heat	016	2400 bps	411	15 Minuten	Sontex SA	012	
aehler00510400	aehler11000810	Enabled	Electricity	001	9600 bps	006	15 Minuten	Hydrometer GmbH	149	
aehler06371082	📼 zaehler11000811	Enabled	Water	001	9600 bps	006	15 Minuten	Hydrometer GmbH	149	
zaehler11000810	📼 zaehler13010046	Enabled	Bus component	001	2400 bps	010	15 Minuten	Hydrometer GmbH	150	
	📼 zaehler23239017	Enabled	Heat	017	2400 bps	025	15 Minuten	ZENNER GmbH & Co KGaA, 66121 Saar	099	
zaehler13010046	aehler23239020	Enabled	Heat	018	2400 bps	019	15 Minuten	ZENNER GmbH & Co KGaA, 66121 Saar	099	
2320017	zaehler30c95322	Enabled	Bus component	129	9600 bps	012	15 Minuten	Hydrometer GmbH	151	
Zachler23230020	aehler32060125	Enabled	Heat	013	2400 bps	023	15 Minuten	Sensus Metering Systems, Ludwigshafe	096	
	aehler70850193	Enabled	Heat	015	2400 bps	023	15 Minuten	Sensus Metering Systems, Ludwigshafe	052	
2aenier50(93522	📼 zaehler73950140	Enabled	Heat	014	300 bps	013	15 Minuten	Sensus Metering Systems, Ludwigshafe	011	
Zaenier52000125	📼 zaehler90102637	Enabled	Heat	024	2400 bps	017	15 Minuten	Schlumberger Industries Ltd.	005	
zaenier/0850193										
zaehler/3950140										
	1									
ait								Ok		NUM

The program window in the "Meter" view.

🔯 Unbenannt.mbt - M-Bus OPC-Serv	ver											
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Modu	us ?											
D 📽 🖬 🖼 🖼 🤼 🕸 🎯	🖻   🕺 🕇   '	?										
× Na	ame	Wert	Тур	Faktor	Einheit	Status	Systemzeit	Lokale Zeit	Beschreibung	Tarif	Storage	Wert-Typ
E- ANE-PC-W7-64	DP-001	09.05.06 20:16	Time Poi		Date&Time	Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	0	VT_14
🖻 🖓 Bus1,COM1 🔡	DP-002	29128	On Time	1	hour	Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	0	VT_I4
zaehler0000004	DP-003	40090	Energy	1	Wh	Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	1	VT_I4
zaehler0000010	DP-004	0	Power	1	W	Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	1	VT_I4
	DP-005	103	Reset co	1		Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	0	VT_12
- = zaehler00510399	DP-006	4	Errorflag			Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	0	VT_UI1
	DP-007	08.05.06 03:36	Time Poi		Date&Time	Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Instaneous val	0	1	VT_I4
- = zaehler06371082	Temporary Error	Off				Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Special Tag to i	0	0	VT_BOOL
	Permanent Error	Off				Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Special Tag to i	0	0	VT_BOOL
🔤 zaehler11000811 🗧	Power Low	Off				Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Special Tag to i	0	0	VT_BOOL
🔤 zaehler13010046 🗒	Device Answer	On				Ok	16.02.2012 08:33:25	09:33:25	Special Tag to i	0	0	VT_BOOL
- = zaehler23239017												
aehler30c95322												
zaehler32060125												
zaehler70850193												
zaehler73950140												
zaehler90102637												
_												
Bereit								Ok			N	

# **5.2 USER INTERFACE**

	Successful communication.
	Communication uncertain.
	Communication disrupted.
DP-289	Data points read in and OK.
E DP-290	Data points uncertain.
🗄 DP-002	Data points cannot be read.

#### 5.2.1 System tree, information about the communication status

#### 5.2.2 Status bar, standby display , tooltips

<b>_</b>	
- 12	orott
	ereit
	CI CIL

This information line shows the ready status of the program. If the mouse pointer is moved over an entry in the toolbar or within the menus, brief information about the corresponding program function is displayed at this point.

#### 5.2.3 Status bar, information about the communication status

This information line can assume the following states:

**PARAMETRIERUNG** The program is in parameterization mode, communication to the M-Bus and OPC is deactivated.

Server-Modus

The program is in operating mode.

Polling der Datenpunkte aktiviert. The program is in operating mode and the data points are read out.

Pollen Datenpunkt von Zähler00219690 an COM1. The program is in operating mode and the specified Meter is read.

Pollingzyklus aktiv... The polling cycle is switched on and active.

# 5.3 THE TOOLBAR

The toolbar provides quick access to the most important program functions. The individual functions of the toolbar are described below.



The following functions are available here for direct access:

D	New document: Creates a new, empty project.
È	<b>Open:</b> Opens an existing project from the hard disk.
	Save: Saves the current project to the hard disk.
<b>H</b>	Import : Importing a project configuration in XML format.
	Export: Exporting a project configuration in XML format.
<u>**</u>	Read in all buses: Searches for devices on all connected serial interfaces.
¥.	Read bus again: Searches for devices on the currently selected serial interface.
8	Cancel import: Interrupts the search for new devices.
m	<b>Create new:</b> Depending on the selected position in the tree, a new bus, a new device or a new data point can be created.
Ň	<b>Parameterization:</b> Switches to configuration mode for editing the project planning.
1	Activate polling: Switches on the cyclical polling of the Meter values (polling).
ę	Info about: Shows information on the program version.

### 5.4 THE MENUS OF THE M-BUS OPC SERVER

5.4.1 The "File" menu



#### 5.4.1.1 New

creates an empty parameterization file (mbt file).

#### 5.4.1.2 Open

loads a parameterization file from the hard disk (mbt file).

#### 5.4.1.2 Saving

saves the current parameterization file to the hard disk (mbt file).

#### 5.4.1.3 Save as

saves the current parameterization file to the hard disk with the option of selecting a new file name (mbt file).

#### 5.4.1.4 Import

Select this option to import a configuration in XML format.

#### 5.4.1.5 Export

Select this option to save a project in XML format.

#### 5.4.1.6 Exit

Exits the M-Bus OPC server. If clients are still connected to the OPC server, a warning message appears to draw attention to this status. In this case, the connected clients and then the M-Bus OPC server should be terminated first.

#### 5.4.2 The "Edit" menu



#### 5.4.2.1 Create new

Depending on the position in the system tree, the new creation of: Bus, Meter or Data point.

#### 5.4.2.2 Delete

Depending on the position in the system tree, the deletion of: Bus, Meter or Data point.

#### 5.4.2.3 New read-in

New read-in optionally from: current bus or all buses. When reading in the meters, all data points of the meter are read in.

#### 5.4.2.4 Cancel read-in

Interrupts the search for new meters.

#### 5.4.2.5 Properties

Depending on the position in the system tree, the properties of: Bus, Meter or data point.

#### 5.4.3 The "View" menu



#### 5.4.3.1 Toolbar

Switches the display of the toolbar on or off.

#### 5.4.3.2 Status bar

Switches the display of the status bar on or off.

#### 5.4.3.3 System tree

Switches the display of the system tree on or off.

#### 5.4.4 The "Mode" menu



#### 5.4.4.1 Parameterization

Switches to configuration mode for editing the project planning.

#### 5.4.4.2 Online

Switches on the cyclical polling of the Meter values (polling).

#### 5.4.4.3 Settings

Settings of the M-Bus OPC server

#### 5.4.4.4 Password protection

Allows you to enter an access password to prevent unauthorized changes to the parameterization.

#### 5.4.4.5 Logging

Switch on the logging function. Serial communication and the frames received can be recorded. The recorded data can be stored in a file or in the clipboard. After selecting "Output to file", the path and file name can be selected.

#### **Caution:**

This can generate large amounts of data. Example of a logging output:

2012-02-14 07:39:06.249 -> -\_-\_\_\_\_ MBUS-Explorer Version 2.0.0.38 -\_-\_\_\_\_ \_-\_-14.02.2012 07:39:06.686 -> COM1: ReadFrame: OK, 76 bytes 14.02.2012 07:39:06.686 -> COM1: Updating counter 00510400, addr 1, frame 29, offset 197 14.02.2012 07:39:06.686 -> COM1: more data follows 14.02.2012 07:39:06.686 -> COM1/Bus1: reading counter 00510400, adr 1, frame 30, offset 204 14.02.2012 07:39:07.374 -> COM1: ReadFrame: OK, 76 bytes 14.02.2012 07:39:07.374 -> COM1: Updating counter 00510400, adr 1, frame 30, offset 204

# 5.5 "EDIT/PROPERTIES" DIALOG

Depending on the position in the system tree, the properties of: Bus, meter or data point.

• Bus

This is used to configure the serial interface to which an M-Bus level converter is connected. Any number. of interfaces can be used.

• Meter

This is used to define the settings for the connected M-Bus meters.

• Data point

If you click on a data point in the main window, the properties of the data point are displayed.

By clicking with the right mouse button on the bus or meter, a selection menu appears in which the editing functions can be called up.



This functionality is available in the main window for the data point.

#### 5.5.1 Bus properties dialog

Bus Eigenschaften			8
Name:	Bus1		ОК
Beschreibung:			Abbrechen
Zähler-Anzahl:	15		
Schnittstelle:	СОМ1	•	
Suchmethode:	Wildcard	•	
Auf dem M-Bus	gleichzeitig unterstützte E	Baudraten	
<b>▼</b> 300	☐ 1200 ☐ 4800	19200	
□ 600	✓ 2400 ✓ 9600	38400	
Schnittstellenkonfiguration RTS: Disable    DTR: Disable			

#### The following properties can be defined here for a bus connection:

**Name:** Specify the name of the serial interface (bus) to which the level converter is connected. This name is used as the first part of the three-level OPC address.

**Description:** Informal text, here you can enter a free text to describe the bus if required.

Number of meters: The number of meters connected to the M-Bus is displayed.

**Interface:** Connection of the level converter. Select the serial interface to which the level converter is connected here.

**Search method:** Wildcard, Sequential, Wildcard+Sequential, defines which search method(s) should be selected for automatically determining the device properties of the connected meters.

#### Explanation of the search methods:

- Wildcard means searching with 'fffffffff' on the bus, either several devices respond or only one. If there are several devices, the wildcard search continues with the possible devices (e.g. 0fffffffff, 1ffffffff etc.) until all possibilities have been tried.
- With a sequential search, all possible device numbers are scanned (i.e. a maximum of 250). However, this may mean that not all devices are recognized and scanning takes longer.

#### Baud rates supported on the M-Bus at the same time:

Select the baud rates supported on the bus here, the M-Bus standard allows different baud rates to be used on the same bus.

#### Interface configuration:

The RS232C handshake lines RTS and CTS can be configured here.

#### 5.5.2 Meter properties dialog

Zähler Eigenschafte	en		×	
Name:	Neuer Zähler 1		ОК	
Beschreibung:			Abbrechen	
Medium:	Gas	-		
Poll-Intervall:	15	Minuten 💌	für alle Geräte	
Identifikations-Nr.:	0000000			
M-Bus Adresse:	0			
Baudrate:	9600 💌			
Kommunikation:	⊙ Aktiv ⊂ In	aktiv	EN 61107 ID:	
Hersteller:			·	
Polling über:	Identifikations-N	Nr. 🔿 M-Bus Adresse	e	
Init	Init C Ja C Nein 💿 Global			
Parametrierte Dater	npunkte			
Temporary Error Permanent Error Power Low Device Answer			Neu Bearbeiten Löschen	
Nac	n oben Nach	unten		

Name: Specify a name here; this is used as the second part of the OPC tag.

**Description**: If required, enter a free text to identify the Meter.

**Medium:** Select the measured medium here, e.g. gas, water, etc. This entry is read from the meter during automatic reading and can no longer be changed.

Poll interval: The poll interval on the bus can be set here; the value set for the bus is used as the default.

**Important note:** With older meters, it is possible that the meters may lose their content and possibly their configuration if the polling intervals are too high. Please read the description of the connected meters to find out whether there are any restrictions on the frequency of read requests.

For all devices: This button can be used to adopt the poll interval for all meters on this bus.

**Identification number:** Specify the identification number of the meter here; this entry is also read from the meter during automatic reading.

**M-Bus address:** The M-Bus address is displayed here. When creating a meter manually, the M-Bus address can be set here.

Baud rate: Set the baud rate if required. This value is also set automatically during automatic reading.

**Communication active/inactive:** If required, switch off the cyclical polling of the Meter here; communication is switched on as the default value.

**Manufacturer:** Select the manufacturer of the meter here; this entry is set automatically during automatic reading.

**Polling via:** Here you can select whether polling should take place via the identification number (secondary addressing) or via the M-Bus address (primary addressing).

**Init:** Sending an SND\_NKE command before polling. This setting is only available in primary addressing. If successfully received, an SND\_NKE initializes the end device at connection level for receiving further telegrams.

**Parameterized data points:** The data points of the Meter can be edited here. See also dialog: Data points/properties.

# 5.7 DATA POINT PROPERTIES DIALOG

Datenpunkt Eigenschaften			
Name:	DP-003	ОК	
Beschreibung:	Instaneous value	Abbrechen	
Kategorie:	Energy 💌		
Datentyp:	Dword 💌		
Status:	ОК		
Identifikations-Nr.:	00000010		
Adresse:	10		
Initialwert:	40090		
Faktor:	1 💌		
Tarif:	0		
Storage-Nr:	1		
– Einheit –	Zieleinheit festlegen		
Diese Einheiteneinstellungen für andere Dateinpunkte übernehmen?			
	Zieleinheit löschen		

**Name:** Enter the name of the data point here. This is used as the third part of the OPC tag. During automatic reading, the data points are numbered consecutively according to the "DP-xxx" scheme (xxx=consecutive number within the Meter).

**Description:** Enter a free description text here if required.

**Category:** Select the data point category here. These entries correspond to those of the M-Bus standard.

Data type: Select the data type via which the value is to be mapped to OPC.

Status: This shows whether the value was successfully read during the last query.

**Identification number:** The identification number of the meter to which the data point belongs is displayed here for information purposes.

**Address:** The address of the meter to which the data point belongs is displayed here for information purposes.

**Initial value:** The initial value can be defined in this field. This value is transferred via OPC as long as no value has been read from the Meter.

Factor: The scaling factor of the data point is defined here.

Tarif: The tarif number can be specified here if required.

Storage number: The storage number of the data point can be defined here if required.

**Note:** For further information on the M-Bus data points, in particular on units, factors, tariff number and storage number, we recommend the documentation of the M-Bus Usergroup (available on the Internet at www.m-bus.com).

**Unit:** The unit of the data point is defined here. After selecting "Set target unit", the selected unit can also be copied to other data points. To do this, the "Delete target unit" button changes to "Copy target unit". When the button is pressed, a new window opens in which the data points to which the unit is to be copied can be selected. The desired data points are selected and the copy action is started with the "OK" button.



# 5.8 "MODE/SETTINGS" DIALOG

Einstellungen des M-Bus OPC-Servers			
<ul> <li>Restanzeige Scanstatus in Statuszeile</li> <li>Splashscreen beim Start</li> <li>Minimieren beim Start</li> <li>Schließen minimiert Applikation (Beenden über Menü)</li> </ul>			
Projektierung beim Beenden sp	eichern 🗨		
🔲 Herstellerkennung für Adres	sierung verwenden		
ACK/Request-Delay:	10 <u>+</u> ms		
Pause zwischen Abfragen:	0 – ms		
Pause für Siemens Geräte:	250 <u>*</u> ms		
Anzahl erlaubter Abfragefehler:			
erlaubte Auslesefehler:	3		
🔲 Auslesefehler auch t	bei Primary Suche erlaubt		
erlaubter Frame-Timeouts	16		
Anzahl Bytes pro ser. Lesen	8 -		
Wartezeit nach Init-Telegramm	0 <u>*</u> s		
✓ Erstes Init-Telegramm übersrpingen (SND_NKE)			
🗖 Simple Modus für Sontex Gerät			
OK Abbrect	nen Standardwerte		

Basic settings for the M-Bus OPC server are made in this menu. These settings relate to the display, the communication behavior of the M-Bus and the behavior when starting and exiting the program.

**Remaining scan status display in status bar:** A progress bar is displayed in the status bar, which provides information about the remaining time of the scanning process.

Splash screen at startup: Display a splash screen.

**Minimize at startup:** The program is automatically minimized at startup and displayed as an icon in the taskbar.

**Close minimizes the application (exit via menu):** The "Close button" in the program window minimizes the application. The application is then displayed as an icon in the taskbar. The application can be closed via the "File/Exit" menu.

#### Selection menu for the behavior when exiting the program:

The following options are offered:

- Save project planning on exit
- Do not save project planning when exiting
- Ask before saving

Use manufacturer ID for addressing: The manufacturer ID supplied by the M-Bus device is used for addressing.

ACK/request delay: ACK/request delay in ms.

Pause between queries: Setting the pause time between two device queries.

Pause for Siemens devices: Special query setting for Siemens devices.

Number of permitted query errors: Setting of the permitted query errors.

Permitted readout errors: Setting of the permitted readout errors.

Readout errors also allowed for primary search: Allow readout errors also for the primary addressed search.

Permitted frame timeouts: Set the number of permitted frame timeouts.

Number of bytes per ser. Read: Setting of the bytes for serial reading.

Waiting time after init telegram: Setting the waiting time after sending the initialization telegram.

Skip first init telegram (SND\_NKE): Skip the first initialization telegram when querying.

Simple mode for Sontex device: Special mode for Sontex devices.

# 6. OPC addressing

#### The OPC tags used for addressing are generated according to the following scheme:

busname.metername.datapointname

The dot character is currently used as a separator.

The following image shows a selection of OPC tags using the Mini OPC client supplied.

Add Item			×
Access Path		Add All Ite	ems Add Item
Item Name Bus1.zaehler00	000004.DP-001		Done
Browse items: Fill	ter: ×	Flat view	Item Properties
		Device     DP-001     DP-002     DP-003     DP-004     DP-005     DP-006     DP-007     Permane     Power L     Tempore	Answer ent Error .ow ary Error
Data Type	C Long C Double C String	C Unsigned Long C Unsigned Short	

Output window of the OPC Mini Client:

MBS.MBusOPCServer.1 - FactorySe		
File OPC View Help		
2		
Tag	Value	Time
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-001	29754924	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-002	25244	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-003	139100	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-004	0	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-005	101	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-006	4	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Bus1.zaehler00000004.DP-007	29625386	16.02.2012 09:55:09
Ready		